Comparative Emergency Management


Session No. 25


Course Title: Comparative Emergency Management

Session 25: Governmental Emergency Management Agencies

Time: 3 hr


Objectives:

25.1 List and Describe the Different Components that Form Most Nations’ Emergency Management Systems

25.2 Describe the Different Governmental Organizational Structures Under Which Emergency Management Systems Operate

25.3 Explain how National Governments Provide Bilateral Disaster Management Assistance to Each Other
Scope:

In this session, the Instructor will describe the various types of governmental agencies involved in national emergency management systems, including the various components of those systems.  The instructor will provide brief examples from around the world to illustrate these lessons. 


Readings: 

Student Reading:

Coppola, Damon. 2006. Introduction to International Disaster Management. Butterworth Heinemann. Burlington. Chapter 8.


McEntire, David A. 2010. Comparative Emergency Management: Understanding Disaster Policies, Organizations, and Initiatives from Around the World. FEMA Emergency Management Institute Higher Education Project. http://training.fema.gov/EMIWeb/edu/CompEmMgmtBookProject.asp. 

Instructor Reading:

Coppola, Damon. 2006. Introduction to International Disaster Management. Butterworth Heinemann. Burlington. Chapter 8.
McEntire, David A. 2010. Comparative Emergency Management: Understanding Disaster Policies, Organizations, and Initiatives from Around the World. FEMA Emergency Management Institute Higher Education Project. http://training.fema.gov/EMIWeb/edu/CompEmMgmtBookProject.asp.


General Requirements:

Power point slides are provided for the instructor’s use, if so desired.

It is recommended that the modified experiential learning cycle be completed for objective 25.1 to 25.3 at the end of the session.


General Supplemental Considerations:

This session will explore the different emergency management structures that exist around the world, and explain their similarities and differences (as well as the reasons for these similarities and differences).  In order for students to fully engage in class discussions, it is important that they have taken some time to look at actual examples of emergency management structures.  David A. McEntire’s FEMA Emergency Management Institute book hosted on the EMI Higher Education Program website (and listed in the Required Readings section above) offers a great source of real-world examples.  There are also many much more concise examples in the Coppola text.  The Instructor may wish to assign each student a different chapter from the McEntire source prior to the course, which will in effect limit the burden on individual students to a single chapter, and likewise ensure that the widest range or viewpoints can be brought to the class discussions.  There are other sources of information on national structures, including the International Civil Defense Directory, and the websites of each national emergency management government structure.  The Instructor can use the resources found in Chapter 8 of the Coppola book to determine which government agency houses the emergency management capacity within each country, which will guide students in their research.  


Objective 25.1: List and Describe the Different Components that Form Most Nations’ Emergency Management Systems

Requirements:

Provide students with a lecture to introduce the standard components that are found in the emergency management structures of most of the world’s nations.  Facilitate classroom discussions to explore student experience and knowledge and to expand upon this lesson material.  

Remarks:

I. People traditionally rely upon their government to provide for their safety and security, with only few exceptions.

II. During times of disaster, this governmental responsibility is greatly magnified as the needs of individuals become collective.  Needs increase in number and scope with the growth of an incident, stretching the reaches of government capacity until response requirements exceed what a government is able to manage. 

III. To address emergency and disaster event response requirements, governments develop emergency management capacity in response to and within the confines of a number of different factors.

A. Governmental emergency management capacity typically begins with response (see slide 25-3). 


1. Ask the Students, “Why do government emergency management systems typically begin their evolutionary process with the establishment of a response capacity?” 


2. Students will be able to draw their answers from their own experience and knowledge or from the assigned readings.  The instructor can use the following examples to spur discussion:

a) Response provides the greatest immediate potential for saving lives

b) Spontaneous response mechanisms arise as a result of people’s survival instinct and collective community concern

B. After response, preparedness, recovery, and mitigation capacities follow, typically in that order.


C. Governmental emergency management capacities are generally the most robust in the industrialized countries, but a number of developing nations have established sufficient capacity to address the more comprehensive needs of risk and disaster management.


D. For instance, Thailand and Vietnam have made significant strides to address annual flooding as their economies have grown.  Flood risk threatens the flourishing economies of both of these countries, and their governments have recognized the great potential for addressing risk through a multitude or mitigation, preparedness, and response actions.


1. Ask the Students, “Why might developing countries still have weak or nonexistent comprehensive emergency management systems?”  


2. Ask the Students, “What factors are most likely to drive a poor nation to invest in risk reduction activities?”


3. Students may have their own ideas or draw examples from Coppola, Chapter 8.


E. Because poor developing countries focus mostly on response and pay inadequate attention to risk reduction, the result is an elementary emergency management capacity that is quickly overcome by even moderate events. 


1. Ask the Students, “What is being done on the international level to address the capacity of governmental emergency management agencies, as discussed in earlier sessions?”

a) International advocacy and the actions of the United Nations, national government development agencies, and many nongovernmental organizations, recognition of the importance of mitigation, preparedness, and recovery planning is rapidly growing. 

b) The IDNDR, ISDR, the Yokohama Strategy, and Hyogo Framework for Action, are all efforts and actions that have been initiated to increase worldwide emergency management capacity.  

c) Some national governments are even partnering to increase their collective hazard risk reduction potential, as has been the case with the ASEAN countries in Southeast Asia. 

F. All countries, regardless of their development levels, subscribe to a relatively universal set of system components upon which they rely to to address their hazard risks (see slide 25-4).


1. Although each country’s emergency management organizations and systems have developed independently from a variety of sources, vast institutional sharing between countries has created an overall standardization of types of emergency management organizations, most notably in the area of first response. 


2. Globalization has facilitated the standardization of practices, protocols, and equipment used by emergency management organizations. 


3. Certain factors, including wealth, technical expertise, government type, and specific risk profile, contribute to defining how each agency is organized and equipped, their fundamental missions are almost identical. 


4. These components include:

a) Fire Departments (see slide 25-5)

(1) Fire departments are almost universal in their mission, and are also known as the fire brigade or fire service in other countries.  

(2) Fire departments are the most common emergency management structure in local communities throughout the world, serving the most common hazard (fire). 

(3) Over time, many nations’ fire departments have expanded their abilities to address a wider range of both regular and rare hazards, including:
(a) Fire suppression (structural, brushfire, wildfire, hazardous material fire)
(b) Fire and arson investigation

(c) Rescue (urban, swift water, wilderness, cave, airborne, alpine, dive, crack and crevice) 

(4) Ask the Students, “What other functions have fire departments assumed as their emergency and disaster management mandate has expanded?”

(a) Students can draw examples from both of the assigned readings to answer this question.  

(b) Other examples the Instructor can use to spur discussion include: 

(i) Vehicle extraction

(ii) Warning issuance
(iii) Terrorism (actual or threatened) response

(5) Fire department organization differs from country to country.  The structure is dictated by two primary factors, including:

(a) Are the fire service personnel paid?

(b) Is the government centralized or decentralized?

(6) Fire departments are organized throughout the world according to one of three common structures.  These include:

(a) A locally-based organizational structure 

(i) Canada, Germany, United States
(b) A regionally-focused organizational structure 

(i) Australia, United Kingdom
(c) A national organizational structure 
(i) Spain, France, Hong Kong

(7) Each fire department mission and goals are driven by both the hazard risk of the community, and the funding levels they are able to access - both of which differ significantly between countries.

(a) The following are key factors behind likelihood and consequence components of fire hazard risk in a given country: 

(i) Cooking and heating practices

(ii) Outdoor burning practices

(iii) Housing materials and design

(iv) Population density

(v) Industrial activities

(vi) Climate

(vii) Vegetation

(viii) Availability of water

(ix) Topography 

(b) Funding sources and levels differ from country to country, but rarely exist at levels sufficient to fully address recognized fire risk and meet all of a fire department’s needs.  These needs include (see slide 25-6):
(i) Personnel

(a) Ask the Students, “Most countries, including industrialized countries, do not have paid firefighters outside of the urban areas.  Why do you think this is the case?”

(b) The primary factor behind this trend is that the light demand for emergency services in rural areas does not justify a full-time paid department. 

(c) Most firefighters work part time, often reporting to work only when called in for emergencies. 
(ii) Training

(a) Examples of training capacities maintained by national governments include:
(b) Australia (Queensland): www.fire.qld.gov.au/ about/training.asp
(c) Chile: www.bomberos.cl/academy.asp
(d)  United States: www.usfa.fema.gov/training/ nfa/
(iii) Equipment, including:
(a) Apparatus
(b) Firefighting equipment

(c)  Personal protective equipment (PPE)
(d) Rescue equipment

(iv) Communications
(v) Facilities

(vi) Information
(vii) Authority

(a) Ask the Students, “Why do fire departments need statutory authority to respond to fires?”

(b) Fire officials need special power to take emergency action to prevent the loss of life and property, including such things as closing down businesses that do not comply with accepted fire codes and refusing occupancy to public or private structures that have not been constructed to fire safety standards. Firefighters may need to impose restrictions on movement or facilitate evacuations, both of which require preexisting statutory authority.  Without special authority, this may not be possible under a nation’s constitution.
b) Law Enforcement (see slide 25-7)
(1) Also called police departments, sheriff’s offices, and constabularies.

(2) These are government-sanctioned entities responsible for maintaining law and order within the community. 

(3) Law enforcement agencies are typically involved in the emergency management function at the local level.

(4) Ask the Students, “What are some of the functions that a law enforcement agency may be able to contribute to the emergency management effort?”

(5) Students may draw their responses from their knowledge and experience or from the required reading assignments.  The Instructor can spur discussion with the following examples:

(a) Disaster scene security
(b) Warning issuance

(c) Security at critical facilities

(6) Police department organization almost always follows the organizational structure of the national government, given the law enforcement role.  

(7) As such, police departments are typically managed at the national level.

(8) Federalized systems, such as in the United States, maintain law enforcement powers primarily at the local level. 

(9) In some countries, as is the case in Canada, a mix of organizational structures might exist.  

c) Office of Emergency Management (see slide 25-8) 

(1) Emergency management agencies or offices, often called Civil Protection, are charged with mitigation, preparedness, response and recovery planning and coordination for large-scale events. 

(2) The field of emergency management was practically nonexistent until the civil defense days of the 1950s, when many industrialized countries’ governments began to make formal preparations for nuclear war. 

(3) These systems helped to prepare communities by building shelters, educating the public, and training first responders.
(4) Over time, offices of civil protection began to address other catastrophic hazards. A few agencies even began to assume response and recovery coordination functions. 

(5) Today, most countries maintain some form of civil protection or emergency management office at the central government level, which addresses mitigation of and preparedness for major disasters. 

(6) Several of these national-level offices have developed the capacity to offer response and recovery assistance to disasters as well, usually in a supportive fashion rather than leading the response, as long as local agencies can to do so. 

(7) All smaller, more routine emergency events almost always are left to police, fire, and emergency medical responders designated to a specific area.

(8) At the local and regional levels, the fire department or the police department handles emergency management planning and coordination, though many major cities have created government offices dedicated to emergency management practice.

d) Emergency Medical Services (see slide 25-9)
(1) Often called “EMS” or the “ambulance service” 

(2) A specialized form of medical care performed at the scene of the disaster or emergency event. 

(3) EMS personnel are highly trained professionals who offer medical assistance greatly exceeding basic first aid. EMTs stabilize victims for transport to a hospital, where better equipment and conditions are present. 

(4) Though many police and fire officials are trained to provide first aid and medical assistance, EMS organizations are usually trained and equipped to go beyond the basics, and may even be certified to perform invasive procedures or to administer a range of drugs. 

(5) The EMS systems present in different countries vary according to:

(a) Training levels

(b) Availability of funding

(c) Quality of equipment

(d) Culture of ‘self help’

(e) The general mode of operation the organizations assume in response to emergency events
(6) EMS services are typically private and charge victims a fee for their services. They may be publicly funded and associated with a hospital or a fire department, or be an independent public service. The vast majority of EMS officials are volunteers.
e) The Military (see slide 25-10)
(1) Almost every country includes the military in their overall disaster management planning and operations process. 

(2) Though most democratic governments hesitate to utilize their military resources to address domestic issues, these national defensive forces are best suited in many ways to meet the needs required when responding to disasters. 

(3) Ask the Students, “What makes military agencies so well suited for disaster management work?”

(a) Large, secure budgets

(b) Specialized equipment

(c) Intensive training

(d) Quickly deployable

(e) Self-sufficient

(f) Highly organized, hierarchical structure

(4) Ask the Students, “Why might a government hesitate to rely upon the military to intervene in a disaster event?

(5) Many nations’ primary motivation for involving military assets is that of authority, however military forces work under a command structure that can be at odds with the chain of command outlined in most emergency response plans. 

IV. Other Government Emergency Management Resources (see slide 25-11)

A. The vast majority of national government emergency management agencies are maintained by a small staff.


B. The main purpose of these agencies is, as the name suggests, manage the emergency event by dictating the actions that are carried out by a range of different government agencies with the capacities to address one or more of the key response requirements of the event.


1. As such, and whether formalized or informal in nature, there is a full range of agencies that work alongside traditional disaster management agencies as discussed above. 


2. The ability or appropriateness of these actors to participate in the process is closely connected to the individual characteristics of each community. 


3. Governments use a range of titles to describe these departments, many of which perform the same or similar activities despite differences in nomenclature. 


4. Ask the Students, “What other government agencies might be involved in emergency management, and what services might they be able to supply (given their regular mission)?”

a) Student answers may be supported by the assigned readings, or from their own knowledge and/or experience.

b) Examples might include any of the following:

(1) Department (Ministry) of Public Works
(2) Transportation Department (Ministry) or Authority

(3) Department (Ministry) of Public Health

Supplemental Considerations

N/a


Objective 25.2: Describe the Different Governmental Organizational Structures Under Which Emergency Management Systems Operate

Requirements:

Provide students with a lecture that provides a background on the basis of organizational structures into which national emergency management capacities are formed, and the influence that structure has on the way emergency management is performed.  Facilitate classroom discussions to explore student experience and knowledge and to expand upon this lesson material.  

Remarks:

V. A diverse range of national and local government structures exist in the more than 180 countries of the world.


A. These different forms of government have a strong influence on the structure of emergency management agencies that exist at all government levels.


B. While there are similarities in the components, as described in Objective 25.1, there exists no single overarching organizational style. 

C. Each government and each emergency management structure requires a unique management approach to suit the country’s specific organizational framework. 
VI. The chief determinant in the organizational structure employed is the form of national government.


A. National government structures range from autocratic totalitarianism to democratic republics. 


1. Because emergency management is a function of government, and the sources of expertise behind the many response requirements span the many agencies that form a government, it is natural that the structure of emergency management mirror this configuration (see slide 25-12).


2. Emergency management, like the government as a whole, is structured by command and control.  The management of emergencies and disasters is thus a mere outgrowth of the control a government seeks over unforeseen events.


3. No government will extend power and authority beyond what it will under normal circumstances.  In fact, oftentimes the authorities that exist are curtailed or eliminated in times of disaster to ensure the retention of control within the existing structure.


4. Attempts on the part of government to enact emergency management structures that run counter to the governance structure of the country have only been met with resistance in the past.


B. Government structure, however, is but one (albeit the most important) of many influential factors that define not only what type of emergency management framework that exists but also how effective it is and what functions it addresses.  


1. These secondary factors include (but are not limited to):

a) National risk profile

b) Social structure

c) Risk perception

d) Development indicators

e) Wealth

f) Access to technical expertise

g) Location of emergency management capacity within the structure of government 

h) Ask the Students, “What other factors might influence what type of emergency management framework exists, how effective it is, and what functions it addresses?”

C. In the past, there simply was no emergency management structure at the national level.  


1. The result of a structural vacuum was that local government was left to its own devices in the management of disaster responses. 


2. The Cold War era caused a formalization, and even a standardization, of the different emergency management structures within countries.  

a) Several national governments developed national-level agencies in preparation for the management of what were seen as possible national-level incidents – namely nuclear attack.  

b) Examples of countries that developed their national structures in this fashion include:

(1) The United Kingdom

(2) Canada

(3) Australia

(4) The United States

(5) The Soviet Union

c) National civil protection agencies were established, and instructed local and regional governments in the following (see slide 25-13):

(1) Building community shelters

(2) Providing public preparedness education 

(3) Conducting air-raid exercises

(4) Creating squads of medical and other response crews

d) These organizations are seen as the root of many of the more advanced emergency management organizations that exist today.


3. The perceived risk from these threats began to dissipate during the 1970s and 1980s. 

a) At the same time, several governments in the industrialized world began to notice a sharp increase in the human and financial cost consequences of disasters and began seeking ways to reduce risk before disasters happened. 

b) Recognizing that an effective framework existed at all levels of government, many of these nations, including those mentioned above, began to pass legislation expanding the role of the civil defense organizations such that their responsibilities would include all hazards.

4. Outside of the industrialized world, very little was done to address emergency management on a national level. 

a) Developing countries had little or no organized emergency management capacity at the local level due to lack of resources, and this reality continues today. 

b) Only the largest towns and cities in these nations tend to develop an emergency response capacity; even there, equipment is often outdated, insufficient for recognized needs, and in poor condition. 

c) Little funding is available to pay full-time first responders, and responders often lack even the most fundamental training required to safely and efficiently manage emergency and disaster situations.

5. By the 1990s, many developed countries had made significant advancements in their emergency management structures at the national and the local levels, and the result was clearly illustrated in the trend of disaster deaths disproportionately moving to developing countries. 

a) To reverse this trend, the UN named the 1990s the International Decade for Natural Disaster Reduction. During this decade, the UN worked with member countries to design institutional emergency management frameworks and to introduce the basic concepts of hazards risk management and risk reduction. 

b) Their goal was to transfer the postdisaster response focus in those countries to that of comprehensive pre- and postdisaster emergency management.

6. In 1994, during the World Conference on Natural Disaster Reduction, developing countries lacking any organized disaster management capacity presented action plans for developing a formalized emergency management structure. 

a) This meeting culminated with the famous Yokohama Strategy and Plan of Action for a Safer World. 

b) Most of these countries subsequently took legislative action to establish a separate agency within their central government structure dedicated expressly to addressing hazard risk. 

c) Unfortunately, many countries have found it difficult to extend this effort much further because any effective emergency management function must have three things: 

(1) An ample budget

(2) An appropriately sized and trained staff

(3) Statutory authority. 

d) Many developing countries struck by major disasters in the past decade are becoming the exception. 

(1) Ask the Students, “Based on the required readings or on your personal experience and knowledge, why and how might a major disaster impact, response, and recovery help a developing country to improve their emergency management capacity?” 

(2) This happened in many countries in Central America devastated by Hurricane Mitch and also in the Ukraine following the Chernobyl nuclear accident. 


7. The evolution of national emergency management capacities within a country is a process that can move in a cyclical pattern. 

a) It begins with forming elementary response mechanisms at the local level, inspired through mutual concern and civic involvement. 

b) Next, the national government is called on or is inspired to accommodate for the lack of a comprehensive risk reduction mechanism (mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery) by developing capacity at the national level. 

c) And, finally, as resources and expertise permit, this central authority works over time to develop communities’ capacity to perform all these tasks at the local level.


8. If a government structure is so centralized that there is virtually no local capacity to build upon, it may be impossible for local communities to ever fully assume any emergency management responsibilities. 

a) This is especially true in authoritarian regimes, which resist transferring power to the local level because that is seen as surrendering central government control. 

b) Otherwise, and often through the guidance of the UN and other development agencies, most governments are able to gradually transfer these skills and assets to the local level, where they are most effective. 


9. The most successful emergency management systems are those in which local emergency management agencies maintain operational control of all phases of emergency management, with regional and national authorities only intervening in a supportive role and never assuming any leadership control (see slide 25-15). 

a) Many countries do not yet have the institutional capacity at the local level to assume these responsibilities, but the UN and other development agencies are working to help these nations gradually develop such capacity.
VII. Locally-Based Structures (see slide 25-16)

A. Disasters are inherently based at the local level.


1. Community members are best able to identify their own needs, capacities, and risks. 


2. The majority of ‘first responders’ in a major disaster are friends, neighbors, employees, colleagues, and family members. 


3. Damaged and destroyed structures are community buildings, schools, markets, and homes. 


4. And although the consequences of a hazard may affect a whole region, a whole nation, or even several nations, the individual losses have profound effect at the local community level.


B. Emergencies occur every day in almost every community. The vast majority are minor, involving few victims and minimal property, and are considered routine by the responding agencies or individuals. 


1. Although local governments differ considerably in regards to their emergency management capacity, each community maintains a minimum capacity proportional to its risk complexity and need. 


2. In small towns and villages, where populations are much smaller and where fires and other accidents rarely occur, it might not make sense to have a fully equipped fire department idly waiting for weeks on end; even in developed countries, rural communities may have no dedicated emergency services of their own. 


3. On the other hand, a minimum of tens of thousands of fire, police, and emergency medical technicians may be necessary in large cities to meet the emergency needs of millions of residents. 


C. Many governments that have developed strong multi-tiered emergency management systems have recognized the value of a prepared, equipped, and trained local emergency management capability, and have worked to support that capacity through funding, technical assistance, and operational support in times of disaster. 


1. Their response agencies, including fire departments, police departments, emergency medical services, and offices of emergency management, are staffed by local officials (even if their administrative framework is national).


2. Local emergency management agencies are most effective when they conduct the full range of emergency management functions, including pre- and post-disaster activities. 

3. Mitigation and preparedness activities tend to enjoy the greatest impact when they are conducted locally, as these practices require a significant amount of local knowledge, input, and dedication to be accurate or effective.


4. When local response agencies become overwhelmed, regional or national resources may be brought in to assist in response and recovery. 


5. Even then, these functions are often most effectively performed when a local executive remains in command of all resources dedicated to the disaster. 


D. Locally-based response agencies may involve several or all of the following:


1. Fire department


2. Police department


3. Emergency medical services


4. Office of emergency management


5. Emergency call center

E. Examples of countries that utilize locally-focused emergency management (regardless of the existence of regional or national organizations) include:


1. Brazil


2. New Zealand


3. Switzerland


4. The United Kingdom


5. The United States


VIII. Regionally-Based Structures (see slide 25-17)

A. In many countries, local government authority is based at the regional level.  


1. Countries may be subdivided into a whole range of administrative and political divisions, including counties, parishes, cantons, territories, districts, provinces, and states. 


2. How much authority and administrative power is granted to government officials at each level is primarily a factor of the form of the country’s national government. 


3. In those countries with a federal or federated system of government, the primary power structure is one of decentralization. 

a) Regional governments within these systems have broad discretionary power to make laws, spend resources, and impose restrictions or requirements on communities. 

b) In some of these systems, the United States being a perfect example, the regional (state) level government extends primary emergency management authority to local authorities. 

c) In Australia, however, the regional government retains the authoritative base of comprehensive emergency management.


4. In these cases, many first-response agencies, including the fire and police departments, are likely to be organized, funded, and dispatched from the regional level. 

a) Local officials have very little decision-making power over actions taken in any of the four emergency management phases. 

b) They also have very little or no control over the actions of the emergency management agencies.


5. In many large countries, regional emergency management structures have emerged even when the administrative base of emergency management has been granted to the local government agencies. 

a) These regional offices usually focus on policy setting, funding, and direction, rather than actually taking operational measures in response to or in preparation for disasters. 

b) Functions commonly assumed by these regional offices include:
(1) Setting standards for emergency management based upon recognized needs within the region, and monitoring adherence to those standards
(2) Providing grants for funding projects that enhance local agency response, mitigation, preparedness and/or recovery capacity

(3) Establishing programs that address the training and other technical assistance needs of local agencies, including developing regionally based training academies
(4) Maintaining specialized teams of responders or specialized equipment that is deployable throughout the administrative region in times of need


6. When they exist in concert with local agencies, regional agencies may be called in when local resources are overwhelmed. 

a) Regional agencies may either provide the assistance themselves or coordinate a response that involves resources from neighboring jurisdictions. 

b) Many regional governments have at their disposal dedicated military, police, or other similar assets that may be brought in to assist the affected local populations. 

c) Belarus, France, and Germany are three examples of countries with regionally based emergency management structures.

IX. Nationally-Based Structures (see slide 25-18)

A. Largely as a result of UN efforts, almost all countries have developed an office at the national government level that manages emergency situations. These offices are not uniform, and differ most in the following:


1. Where within the national government they are situated


2. What authority (statutory or otherwise) they  have to manage, assume responsibility for, or assist in disaster response


3. The size of their budget (including ability to acquire funds in response to unforeseen emergencies)


4. How well trained their staff is in the practice of emergency management


5. What assets they may bring to bear in the event of an emergency


B. Nationally-based structures are most effective when their role is purely supportive, leaving the actual decision making to local or regional government authorities. 

1. Few national government–based emergency management structures have the staff or budget to effectively address the particular needs of every community in their country. 


2. National government authorities are not direct community stakeholders and therefore do not have the same knowledge or concern for the community’s safety as local officials do and are not likely to promote important risk reduction preparedness and mitigation measures with the same enthusiasm or effectiveness. 


3. Further, experience shows that when emergency management authority and funding are controlled at the highest levels of government, the local ability to respond quickly and effectively in the face of disaster becomes severely impeded by both bureaucracy and reduced capacity.


4. Ask the Students, “What other risks might a country have in placing too much emergency management authority at the national level?  In what situations would national-level authority be ideal?”


C. Even though they are not suited for the day-to-day emergency management activities of every community, national government emergency management structures are necessary. 


1. For instance, national government emergency management agencies are the best placed to:

a) Provide emergency management priorities, standards, direction, and goals to guide local emergency managers
b) Provide training and expertise in the field of emergency management

c) Provide funding to support mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery
d) Provide technical support, in the form of imagery, information, assessment, early warning, and engineering, for example
e) Assist in the coordination and facilitation of external assistance, whether from within or outside of the country
f) Organize and facilitate hazard-based insurance programs that may not be offered by private insurance providers

g) Provide specialized assets, which could include urban search and rescue (USAR) teams; hazardous materials detection, containment, cleanup, and decontamination; heavy lifting and debris removal equipment; and infrastructure repair teams and equipment 

2. Examples of international offices of emergency management include:

a) Armenia Emergency Management Administration: www.ema.am/En/index_en.html
b) Emergency Management Australia: www.ema. gov.au/

c) Public Safety and Emergency Preparedness Canada: www.ocipep.gc.ca/home/index_e.asp
d) Belarus Ministry of Emergency Situations: www.rescue01.gov.by/eng/
e) Dominican Republic Office of Civil Defense: www.defensacivil.gov.do/
f) Japan Fire and Disaster Management Agency: www.fdma.go.jp/en/
g) Mexico System of Civil Protection: www. proteccioncivil.gob.mx
h) New Zealand Ministry of Civil Defence & Emergency Management: www.mcdem.govt.nz/ memwebsite.nsf

i) Panama Civil Protection: www.sinaproc.gob.pa/ index.php?option=com_frontpage&Itemid=1
j) Civil Protection Switzerland: www. bevoelkerungsschutz.admin.ch/internet/bs/en/ home.html

k) U.K. Civil Contingencies Secretariat: www. ukresilience.info/home.htm
l) U.S. Federal Emergency Management Agency: www.fema.gov


X. One of the most important factors in determining both the focus of the national emergency management function and its level of funding and authority is where that function is located within the overall government structure. 


A. In a best-case scenario, the emergency management structure is its own department, ministry, or agency, reporting directly to the most senior executive in the country. 


B. However, in most countries, the emergency management function lies buried below one or more bureaucratic organizational levels. 


1. This may be because of how the government perceives emergency management in relation to other government functions, such as the U.S. government locating FEMA within the Department of Homeland Security, or it may be a sign that there is not enough institutional support for emergency management to give it a high status in government. 

2. Examples of where emergency management functions are located within national government structures include: 
a) Albania: Ministry of Internal Affairs
b) Azerbaijan: Ministry of Defense

c) Belarus: Ministry of Emergency Situations

d) Burkina Faso: Ministry of Territorial Administration and Decentralization
e) Central African Republic: Fire Brigade Battalion of Central Africa

f) Colombia: Committee led by the President of the Republic

g) Guatemala: National Committee for the Reduction of Natural or Man-made Disasters (CONRED)

h) Laos: Ministry of Labor and Social Welfare
i) Monaco: Ministry of State

j) Oman: Sultanate of Oman Police

k) Swaziland: ad hoc committee within the Deputy Prime Minister’s Office
l) United Kingdom: Cabinet Office

XI. No Capacity or No Recognized Government Exists (see slide 25-19)

A. Under certain circumstances, there may be no national government emergency management structure with which external agencies may interface in their efforts to offer assistance. 


B. When this occurs because a government has not established a national emergency capacity but maintains most other regular government services, it is often possible to establish a working relationship and offer support through another function of government that is equipped to serve as an intermediary. 


C. However, in situations where absolutely no government capacity exists, either because of ongoing or recently ended conflict, because a disaster has completely obliterated all national government capacity, or because the existing government is unable to offer any useful assistance, an external improvised coordination framework must be established. 


D. Under these circumstances, the UN most often assumes the role of coordinator. 

Supplemental Considerations

N/a


Objective 25.3: Explain how National Governments Provide Bilateral Disaster Management Assistance to Each Other

Requirements:

Provide students with a lecture that introduces the standard components found in the emergency management structures of most of the world’s nations.  Facilitate classroom discussions to explore student experience and knowledge and to expand upon this lesson material.  

Remarks:

XII. International development assistance is an ongoing activity involving many national government donors and an even greater number of recipients. 


XIII. When disasters become international in scope, unaffected national governments often join the assortment of players providing assistance to the affected nations. 


A. Their options for assistance range from direct cash donations to sending equipment and teams for any of the many tasks related to preparedness, mitigation, response, and recovery. 


B. While it is true that almost any government may be able to contribute cash, a number of national governments are in the position to provide much more.


C. Such assistance may be the fulfillment of a pre-established mutual assistance agreement or an opportunity for the responders to practice their skills in a real-world scenario.


XIV. How Governments Provide Assistance


A. Direct cash donations are a small percentage of the actual assistance provided by national governments to each other in the aftermath of disasters.


1. The type of assistance provided by these national government agencies depends on the disaster type, the needs of the recipient government, and the capacity of the donor. 


2. Donations may come in the form of consumable products, equipment, building materials, transportation, labor, technical assistance, or debt relief, among other forms. 


3. The UN often is the central recipient of donated funds, goods, and services through the Consolidated Appeals Process (CAP) described in the next session.


4. Assistance may also be provided through a regional multilateral organization, such as the Organization of American States or the African Union, which may coordinate the response to one or more of the affected countries within its field of influence. 


5. Finally, governments may donate directly to nongovernmental organizations that in turn provide the services or deliver the goods required to carry out the disaster response and recovery.


6. Monetary assistance is the easiest, and often the most needed, form of assistance in a disaster’s aftermath. 


7. Cash requires the least amount of effort for the donor nation and can help offset much of the cost of response efforts and supplies, as well as repair and reconstruction expenditures, which can be staggering and add up to a significant percentage of a country’s annual income. 


8. Donor governments deliver cash assistance to affected nations in a number of ways, including: 

a) Directly to the recipient government
b) To UN agencies operating in the country

c) Directly to NGOs

9. Ask the Students, “What are the benefits and associated risks with each of these cash delivery options?”  Explanations are provided in the required readings from Coppola, 2006.


10. Cash assistance is provided either in the form of grants or bilateral loans.

11. Ask the Students, “Why would a government choose to provide a loan instead of a grant?”

B. Equipment and Supplies

1. Donor governments also provide affected governments and the organizations operating within the affected areas with a wide range of response, relief, and recovery equipment and supplies.  


2. Even if these items do exist in the country, the broken supply lines, and the excessive In times of disaster, many items are needed in much greater numbers than during non-emergency times. 

a) Ask the Students, “What types of supplies and equipment might governments provide to other governments or to the response effort in times of disaster?” 

b) Ask the Students, “What special considerations might a government providing equipment consider before they make their donation?”  

c) Examples for both of these questions are provided in the required readings.

C. Expertise and Technical Assistance

1. Individuals with disaster management and recovery experience and technical expertise are needed in post-disaster settings to save lives, limit property damage, and reconstruct the affected community. 


2. While much of this expertise is directly associated with emergency and disaster management, some skills and talents are used in nondisaster times but are in greater demand in the mass casualty, mass damage setting of disaster response and in the construction and planning needs of the recovery phase.


3. Search and Rescue teams are the most visible of these resources, but there are many others that are needed in almost every disaster event.


a) Ask the Students, “What technical assistance might a government provide an affected national government or the nongovernmental organizations responding to the disasters to address special response and recovery needs?”

b) Examples are provided in the required readings.

XV. Types of National Government Agencies Involved in Bilateral Assistance (see slide 25-21)
A. Any government, rich or poor, is capable of becoming involved in bilateral disaster assistance, due to the comprehensive nature of response and recovery. 

B. However, there are certain categories of agencies that have a specific focus or expertise suited to address pre-disaster risk reduction or post-disaster humanitarian needs as exhibited by another national government.  


C. These include:

1. Overseas Diplomatic Missions 

2. International Development Agencies
a) Examples include: 
(1) British Department for International Development (DFID)—www.dfid.gov.uk/
(2) Canada International Development Agency (CIDA)—www.acdi-cida.gc.ca/index-e.htm
(3) Swedish International Development Cooperation Agency (SIDA)—www.sida.se

(4) New Zealand International Aid and Development Agency (NZAID)—www.nzaid.govt.nz/


3. National Disaster Management Agencies

4. Other Government Agencies
a) In addition to those agencies with a direct link to international disaster management, a number of government entities, while not primarily focused on disaster or emergency management, have various skills and expertise that could assist in any of the four disaster management components. 
b) The international collaboration between the departments and ministries of public health of the nations threatened and affected by the SARS and avian influenza viruses is one example, as is the increased cooperation between allied governments’ intelligence agencies aimed at limiting terrorism. 

5. Military Resources 


D. Ask the Students, “What types of assistance might each of these different government agencies and components offer a disaster affected nation?”



Supplemental Considerations

N/A
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